
Sugar Grove Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Special Meeting minutes November 29, 2017 
Page -1- 

VILLAGE of SUGAR GROVE 

PLANNNING COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD of APPEALS 

MINUTES of November 29, 2017 SPECIAL MEETING 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

The meeting of the Sugar Grove Planning Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)

was called to order at 7:10 p.m. by Chairman Ochsenschlager in the Village Hall Board

Room.

2. ROLL CALL:

Planning Commission/ZBA members present:

Chairman Irv Ochsenschlager, Jim Eckert, John Guddendorf, Becky Sabo, 

Larry Jones, James White and Gregory Wilson 

Absent: None 

Also present: Walter Magdziarz, Community Development Director 

Renee Hanlon, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Motion was made by Commissioner Guddendorf to approve Minutes of the October 15,

2017 Meeting of the Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals.  The motion was

seconded by Commissioner Sabo.

Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.

Motion was made by Commission Eckert to approve Minutes of the November 16, 2017 

Special Meeting of the Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals.  The motion was 

seconded by Commissioner Jones.   

Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

4. PUBLIC HEARING:

Petition 17-022: Rezoning to M-1 Limited Manufacturing District with a Special Use

for Mining, Reclamation, and Clean Construction Debris Processing. 

Applicant: Heartland Recycling Sugar Grove CCDD, LLC 

Chairman Ochsenschlager called the public hearing to order at 7:14p.m. The Chairman 

administered the oath to all in attendance who wished to speak.  He then invited the 

applicant to the podium. 



Sugar Grove Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Special Meeting minutes November 29, 2017 
Page -2- 

John Savage, Heartland Recycling, began his comments by explaining that this is a land 

reclamation project not a CCDD business operation.  The end goal is to develop the 

property not to run a disposal business.  He provided examples of properties that had 

undergone this same type of fill operation.  He further explained that the southern portion 

of the Waubonsee Community College campus is built on land similarly reclaimed.  He 

explained that using clean construction debris for fill is safer than ordinary fill operations 

because the fill materials are highly regulated by state agencies and, in this case, the 

Annexation Agreement with the Village will set additional site specific regulations.  

Next, Mr. Savage stated that Heartland Recycling has decided to amend their operations 

plan by eliminating concrete crushing and by not accepting asphalt as fill material at this 

location.  He also acknowledged the neighbor’s concerns about flooding in this area.  He 

stated that Heartland Recycling is willing to participate in repairing existing field tiles to 

improve existing conditions of the area. 

Commissioner White asked for clarification on the changes that Heartland will make to 

their operations plan and the change to the underlying zoning request from M-1 to A-1.  

Mr. Savage responded that Heartland will not process concrete on the property; however, 

they will accept concrete block as clean construction debris.  He explained that he is 

amenable to either underlying zoning designation as they recognize this is the first step in 

the zoning process and they understand that additional zoning action will be necessary 

before the reclaimed property can be developed. 

James Leader, 43W555 Old Oaks Road, delivered a video presentation.  He presented 

photographs of the Heartland Recycling facility in Aurora.  Mr. Leader had previously 

presented the same photographs to the Planning Commission via his laptop computer.  He 

continued his presentation with two (2) videos of truck noise and concrete crusher noise 

and dust at the Aurora facility.  Mr. Leader concluded his remarks by stating that his nose 

and hands felt gritty when he left the Aurora facility and that he finds locating such a 

facility a couple of hundred yards from a school and his back door is awe inspiring. 

Mr. Savage responded to the presentation by reiterating that the Sugar Grove site and the 

Aurora site are very different.  He explained that the Sugar Grove site has berms around 

the property so that the fill operation will not be as visible from the street or adjacent 

property as the Aurora operation.  He also reiterated that Heartland will not be operating 

concrete crushing equipment on this property making the video of the concrete crusher  

irrelevant. 

Joe Szelag, 749 Ridgeview Lane, asked Mr. Savage if he lived near a landfill. 

Mr. Savage responded in the negative. 



Sugar Grove Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Special Meeting minutes November 29, 2017 
Page -3- 

Aaron Leuer, 219 St James Parkway, stated that he works across the street from the 

Ozinga concrete operation in Montgomery.  He stated this in his experience concrete 

crushing creates massive amounts of dust.  He continued by stating that truck traffic is a 

larger concern for him and that he has an asthmatic child who will attend Harter Middle 

School in a few years. He stated that any additional revenue from this operation will be 

offset by the need for an air filtration system installed at Harter Middle School.  He 

concluded his comments by stating that no one wants to see this site developed and by 

asking the following questions: 

Does the village have a plan for this property that this project will promote? 

Are any school board members in the audience?  The crowd responded that two (2) 

school board members were present. 

Aaron Lawler, 1936 Cassidy Lane, stated that he is a school board member; however, he 

was speaking as a private citizen when he stated that this project is a bad idea. 

Sakina Bajowala, 1715 Hannaford Drive, stated that she is a medical doctor with the 

Kaneland Asthma Center.  She explained that she previously practiced in the City of 

Chicago and saw many children and elderly with respiratory problems due to traffic 

related air pollution.  She stated that she believes the increase in diesel trucks created by 

this operation will have a negative impact on the air quality which will result in more 

children and elderly having respiratory problems.  She explained that she hospitalized 

half as many patients here as she did when she practiced in Chicago.  She believes the 

difference is explained by the cleaner air in Sugar Grove.  If this project is allowed, it will 

diminish that air quality and result in more hospitalizations.  She concluded by stating 

that she believes this a bad location due to the close proximity of the school and senior 

living facilities in Sugar Grove. 

Tom Wascher, 4S064 Hazelcrest, stated that he believes this project will diminish 

property values in the immediate area and questioned how this project fits the Village 

Comprehensive Plan. 

Dave Blankenship, 4S800 Sugar Grove Parkway, held up a copy of the November     

Daily Herald article which had been previously presented to the Planning Commissioners 

and asked that the Commissioners read the article. 

Mike Coghlan, 1203 S 2nd Street, Dekalb, introduced himself as an attorney representing 

objectors to this petition.  Mr Coghlan reiterated his complaint that due process is not 

being afforded to his clients.  He further stated that evidence has been presented as to the 

potential health risks associated with this type of operation.  He repeated his assessment 

that if the Commissioners recommend approval of this project, they will be liable for any 

damage incurred by any member of the public that is caused by this operation.  He, again, 

pointed to the Rachel Barton case as an example of legal precedent.  Mr. Coghlan 

presented written materials to the Commissioners which are attached. 



Sugar Grove Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Special Meeting minutes November 29, 2017 
Page -4- 

Dave Blankenship addressed the audience and asked that they continue involvement in 

the public process through additional dates of public hearing. 

Mary Kramer, 4S065 Hazelcrest Drive, stated that she has concerns about the traffic 

conflict between trucks, school buses, and young drivers going to the high school. 

Amy Krause, 263 Capitol Drive, explained that she is concerned that the EPA is 

responsible for protecting the public, because that agency is loosening their regulations 

daily. 

Stephen Halm, 737 Ridgeview Lane, questioned the petitioner about how they intend to 

protect area groundwater.  He stated that he feared Sugar Grove could turn into another 

Flint, Michigan. 

Tom Enno, Alpha Environmental, answered Mr. Halm’s questions on behalf of Heartland 

Recycling.  He explained that soil entering the site has to be certified that it contains no 

contaminates that exceed contaminate levels safe for drinking water.  The tests cost 

$1,500 each and are taken seriously by Heartland Recycling.  Once the dirt enters the 

Heartland site, Heartland does additional testing to insure that the dirt is clean.  Lastly, he 

explained that the IEPA will conduct quarterly inspections of the site and will cite owners 

if they find violations.  IEPA also has the authority to shut down operations that are in 

violation of standards.  He further explained that IEPA also regulates noise and that this 

facility will be limited to a maximum noise level of 65 db at all property lines.  He 

explained that noise level is similar to the noise level currently produced by traffic on 

Sugar Grove Parkway.  He concluded by stating that it is his belief that this facility can 

and will be a good neighbor. 

Mike Coghlan addressed the group to remind them that the promises made by Heartland 

are meaningless unless the Village Board includes them in the Annexation Agreement. 

Aaron Lawler, 1936 Cassidy Lane, pointed out that the IEPA regulations referenced by 

Mr. Enno are the same regulations that resulted in the contamination of 4 out of 5 CCDD 

sites as reported in the previously referenced Daily Herald article. 

Tom Enno responded to Mr. Lawler’s comment by stating that he is involved with five 

(5) of the sites listed in the article and that upon further testing all five (5) were cleared of 

any violation.   

Dolores Krick, 233 Caukins, asked Mr. Enno if he lives near a CCDD site.  She also 

stated that she, like most of those in attendance, want to keep Sugar Grove clean. 



Sugar Grove Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Special Meeting minutes November 29, 2017 
Page -5- 

Mr. Enno responded that he lives in Streamwood about two (2) miles from a quarry that 

began a fill operation in 1985. 

Brandon Matthews, 4S916 Sugar Grove Parkway, stated that he had spoken at the 

previous hearing and did not want to be repetitive.  He focused his comments on truck 

maintenance issues.  He stated that as a mechanic for ComEd, he knows that trucks often 

have oil leaks which can cause groundwater contamination.  He stated that one (1) gallon 

of oil making contact with groundwater has the potential of contaminating one (1) million 

gallons of water.  He concluded by stating that he has great concern about trucks in bad 

condition entering the site and contaminating the site with leaking fluids. 

Gloria Krecl, 815 Maple Street, stated concerns about the Village’s capacity to oversee 

this operation.   

Sandra Clutterbuck, address not provided, stated her concern over the drivers delivering 

materials to the site.  She explained that there are regulations that drivers must adhere to 

and questioned who would be responsible for enforcing those regulations. 

Tom Mepyans, 4 Winthrop New, explained that he drove for a roll off company for 

twenty (20) years.  During that time, he drove trucks which were intentionally overloaded.  

He stated his concern that the trucks entering this site will be overloaded and will result in 

excessive wear and tear on village roadways.   

Victoria Delmer, 4S501 Harter Road, stated that she has met with experts in the field 

since the previous hearing.  She explained that she sees no benefit to this proposal and 

believes the property should be filled with materials which exist on the site. She took 

issue with Mr Savage’s opening statement in which he stated that the purpose of the 

project was to reclaim the property not to operate a long term clean construction debris 

disposal site.   

Ken Ireland, 43W439 Old Oak Road, took down the framed copy of the Village of Sugar 

Grove mission statement and read it aloud.  He followed by asking the Planning 

Commissioners to uphold the mission statement.   

Tiffany Musial, 175 Cobbler Court, asked the petitioner why they chose this site and if 

they had ever been turned down by other municipalities for similar proposals. 

Mr. Savage replied that he had stated numerous times throughout these proceedings that 

they selected the site due to its close proximity to the tollway which makes the reclaimed 

site very marketable.  He further answered that they had not requested similar zoning in 

any other municipality. 



Sugar Grove Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Special Meeting minutes November 29, 2017 
Page -6- 

Robbin Kaifesh, 150 Park Avenue, asked why this property has to be developed.  She also 

took issue with Mr. Enno’s testimony, dismissing his statements about soil testing by 

stating that tests can be manipulated. 

Jim Martin, 43W432 Old Oaks Road, asked the petitioner if Heartland Recycling gave the 

City of Aurora $1.25 million in order to operate their existing facility in Aurora. 

Mr Savage responded that the property was owned by the City of Aurora and they 

purchased the property from the City. 

Lisa Legorreta, 260 Chatsworth, stated that the changes Heartland Recycling has made to 

their operations plan almost changed her mind about the project.  She stated that she 

remains concerned about the addition of diesel trucks in the area and the addition of 

airborne particulates they will contribute to the air.  She concluded by explaining that she 

grew up in West Chicago where an industrial user contaminated the area so badly that it 

became a superfund cleanup site.  She does not want that to happen to Sugar Grove. 

Matty, no sir name nor address given, stated that she is an eighth grader at Harter Middle 

School.  She explained that her teachers often open the windows  and they often hold 

class outside during warm weather.  She is concerned that the teachers will have to keep 

the windows closed and they will have to remain indoors if this project creates bad air 

quality and/or a lot of noise. 

Walt Zimmer, 4S245 Wiltshire, stated that the property should remain as a natural area. 

The audience erupted in sustained applause. 

Robbin Kaifesh asked a series of questions about the annexation agreement. 

Chairman Ochsenslager explained the zoning process and pointed out that it is a separate 

process from the annexation process. 

Lisa Legaretta stated that she believes in offering a solution instead of only opposing the 

proposal.  Her solution is to make this site a public recreation area. 

Tom Mepyans stated that Sugar Grove has maintained a strict code for commercial 

development and that this project is not in keeping with the strict code the village has 

successfully maintained. 

After repeatedly being asked if and how much Heartland Recycling will be contributing 

to the Village, Mr. Savage responded that Heartland Recycling is proposing to give two 

percent (2%) of their proceeds back to the Village.  He estimates this will yield between 

10,000 and 20,000 dollars of revenue for the Village annually. 



Sugar Grove Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Special Meeting minutes November 29, 2017 
Page -7- 

Mr. Ireland stated that he and others in the audience are willing to increase their tax 

contribution by $1000 annually in order to offset the lost revenue if the Village Board 

will turned down this proposal. 

Chairman Ochsenslager polled the Commissioners about closing the public hearing. 

Mr Coghlan interjected that he needs a minimum of three (3) weeks to vet information 

that staff had provided to the Planning Commissioners immediately prior to the hearing.  

He intends to present contrary testimony to the Planning Commission. 

Chairman Oschenslager agreed to a continuation of the public hearing until January 10, 

2018, giving Mr Coghlan the time he requires to prepare his summary testimony.  Given 

the number of people in attendance, Chairman Ochsenslager directed staff to find a larger 

venue for the next date of hearing. 

Director Magdziarz announced that the meeting location will be posted on the Village 

website. 

5. NEW BUSINESS:

None.

6. OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

7. PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS, PROJECTS UPDATES and

MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION

Next meeting will be December 20, 2017. 

8. ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Wilson made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:10 p.m.  Commissioner

Sabo seconded the motion.

Motion unanimously passed by voice vote.

Respectfully submitted,  

Renee Hanlon 

Recording Secretary 
























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































